
From: O"Connell, Morrighan
To: GCSW@gibsoncounty-in.gov
Cc: shedges@gibsoncounty-in.gov; Fracetti, Juliana
Subject: Gibson County Composting Registration Review
Date: Monday, June 10, 2024 2:15:00 PM
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Hello Lee,
 
My name is Morrighan O’Connell, and I am the environmental manager reviewing your Vegetative
Matter Composting Registration Application for the Indiana Department of Environmental
Management. Following review, the following items are needed to complete your application:

 
1. A United States Geological Survey (USGS) 7-1/2 minute topographic map or equivalent

that shows the compost site location.

 
2. A site map showing:

a. The compost site boundary
b. Residential structures
c. Roads
d. Potable water wells
e. A minimum of 200 feet between the active area of the compost site and potable

water wells/residential structures
 

3. Information demonstrating the compost will be located at least five (5) feet from the
water table.

a. If the water table is less than five (5) feet from the active compost site, you must
provide a description of controls that will be used to prevent surface water
contamination.

 
4. A map indicating the active compost area is outside of the ten (10) year floodplain.

a. If the active compost area is inside of the ten (10) year floodplain, provide a
description of the controls used to prevent ground or surface water
contamination in the event of a ten (10) year flood.

 
5. Procedures for controlling dust/odor/noise.

 
6. Procedures for controlling storm water runoff and leachate.

 
7. Procedures for handling and disposing of unwanted solid waste/other unwanted

materials.
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8. The physical location of the facility listed in Section D- 771 Old Highway 41 N, Princeton,

differs from the address provided in the 2019 renewal- 3702 S 175 E, Princeton. Please
confirm the correct facility address

 
9. Section E.2 of the application states an estimated 30,000 tons will be processed

annually. This amount is significantly higher than amounts reported in 2022 and 2023,
as shows in the table below. Please confirm the estimated volume to be processed
annually.

 
Year Total Amount Reported
2019 25,000
2020 27,500
2021 28,325
2022 720
2023 1,637

 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. The requested information must be
submitted to this office within 14 days of the date of receipt of this email, or please reach out to me
if additional time is needed.
 
Thank you,
Morrighan

 
Indiana Department of 
Environmental Management
 

Morrighan O’Connell
Environmental Manager II
Office of Land Quality - Solid Waste Permits
moconnel@idem.IN.gov   (317) 232-3362

Protecting Hoosiers and Our Environment

    |      |      |      |      |   www.idem.IN.gov
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O'Connell, Morrighan

From: Sandy  Hedges <shedges@gibsoncounty-in.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, June 11, 2024 12:23 PM
To: O'Connell, Morrighan
Cc: Lee Binhack
Subject: RE: Gibson County Composting Registration Review
Attachments: (1)MO.IDEM.pdf; (2)MO.IDEM.pdf; (3)MO.IDEM.pdf; (4)MO.IDEM.pdf; (5)MO.IDEM.pdf; (6)MO.IDEM.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or click links from 
unknown senders or unexpected email. ****  

Dear Ms. O’Connell: 
Attached please find requested site maps and additional information to support our renewal application. The 
original renewal application was filed on October 4, 2023, and was sent to the email indicated in our letter from 
IDEM (copy of letter attached). We recently learned that the letter contained an erroneous email address. I have 
re-sent the application to Ms. Fracetti, but am also including a copy with this correspondence. I have also 
attached a copy of our Re-Trac submission for 2023.  
 

1. Map Attached 
2. Map Attached 
3. Map Attached 
4. Map Attached 
5. Site Operator reports and controls dust, odor and noise. 
6. Rows above the water line – Commissioners are in charge of all ditches and water run-oƯ for Gibson 

County-all in compliance 
7. All Waste is transferred to a landfill facility in the neighboring county – Blackfoot Landfill in Pike County 

Indiana 
8. The physical location of the compost yard is: 3702 S 175 E in Princeton Indiana, as indicated on the Beacon 

map attached. 771 Old Highway 41 North is our business oƯice and all correspondence should be sent to 
the business oƯice.  

9. We believe the amount reported on this application to be accurate. It is possible that the information 
reported in previous years may have been erroneous, or could have been based on a diƯerent timespan 
since our brush pile is processed as needed, not always annually. 

We have submitted all the information known to be available to us at this time.  Our attorney is out until next week. 
If we need additional documentation, we will need to bring this before our Board of Directors and Attorney, and 
may need an extension. Please let me know if the documents submitted satisfy the requirements, or if we need to 
submit additional information. Thank you for your time and attention to this matter.  
 
 
Sandy Hedges, Controller 
Gibson County Solid Waste 
812-385-3136 
 
 
 

From: O'Connell, Morrighan <MOconnel@idem.IN.gov>  
Sent: Monday, June 10, 2024 1:16 PM 
To: Lee Binhack <GCSW@gibsoncounty-in.gov> 
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Cc: Sandy Hedges <shedges@gibsoncounty-in.gov>; Fracetti, Juliana <JFracett@idem.IN.gov> 
Subject: Gibson County Composting Registration Review 
 
Hello Lee, 
 
My name is Morrighan O’Connell, and I am the environmental manager reviewing your VegetaƟve MaƩer ComposƟng 
RegistraƟon ApplicaƟon for the Indiana Department of Environmental Management. Following review, the following 
items are needed to complete your applicaƟon: 
 

1. A United States Geological Survey (USGS) 7-1/2 minute topographic map or equivalent that shows the 
compost site location. 
 

2. A site map showing: 
a. The compost site boundary 
b. Residential structures 
c. Roads 
d. Potable water wells 
e. A minimum of 200 feet between the active area of the compost site and potable water 

wells/residential structures  
 

3. Information demonstrating the compost will be located at least five (5) feet from the water table. 
a. If the water table is less than five (5) feet from the active compost site, you must provide a 

description of controls that will be used to prevent surface water contamination. 
 

4. A map indicating the active compost area is outside of the ten (10) year floodplain. 
a. If the active compost area is inside of the ten (10) year floodplain, provide a description of the 

controls used to prevent ground or surface water contamination in the event of a ten (10) year 
flood.  

 
5. Procedures for controlling dust/odor/noise. 

 
6. Procedures for controlling storm water runoƯ and leachate. 

 
7. Procedures for handling and disposing of unwanted solid waste/other unwanted materials.  

 
8. The physical location of the facility listed in Section D- 771 Old Highway 41 N, Princeton, diƯers from the 

address provided in the 2019 renewal- 3702 S 175 E, Princeton. Please confirm the correct facility address 
 

9. Section E.2 of the application states an estimated 30,000 tons will be processed annually. This amount is 
significantly higher than amounts reported in 2022 and 2023, as shows in the table below. Please confirm 
the estimated volume to be processed annually.  
 

Year Total Amount Reported 
2019 25,000 
2020 27,500 
2021 28,325 
2022 720 
2023 1,637 
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If you have any quesƟons, please feel free to contact me. The requested informaƟon must be submiƩed to this office 
within 14 days of the date of receipt of this email, or please reach out to me if addiƟonal Ɵme is needed.  
 
Thank you, 
Morrighan 
 

 

Indiana Department of  

Environmental Management 
 

Morrighan O’Connell 
Environmental Manager II 
Office of Land Quality - Solid Waste Permits 
moconnel@idem.IN.gov   (317) 232-3362 

Protecting Hoosiers and Our Environment 

    |      |      |      |      |   www.idem.IN.gov 
 
 



























From: Sandy Hedges
To: O"Connell, Morrighan
Subject: RE: Gibson County Composting Registration Review
Date: Thursday, June 13, 2024 4:28:21 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image003.png
image004.png
image005.png
image006.png
(7)MO.pdf

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

Ms. O’Connell,
I have reviewed the information referenced below in 1.2.3.4.5., on VFC #82698747 (copy attached).
All of the information contained in the (2019) renewal application still applies. Nothing has changed
at our compost facility. Please add these pages to our current renewal application.  Please let me 
know if you need additional information. Thank you for your attention.
 
 
Sandy Hedges, Controller
Gibson County Solid Waste
812-385-3136
 
 
 
From: O'Connell, Morrighan <MOconnel@idem.IN.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, June 13, 2024 2:45 PM
To: Sandy Hedges <shedges@gibsoncounty-in.gov>
Cc: Lee Binhack <GCSW@gibsoncounty-in.gov>; Fracetti, Juliana <JFracett@idem.IN.gov>
Subject: RE: Gibson County Composting Registration Review

 
Hi Sandy,
 
Thanks for sending this over! After review, some of the items need additional clarification. Please see
the following:
 

1. Information demonstrating that the compost will be located at least five (5) feet from the water
table was not provided. In the 2019 submittal (VFC # 82698747, pages 3 and 17-26) a written
statement and soil boring reports were provided. Please confirm if this information is still
accurate, and if you would like these pages added to the current renewal application.

 
2. A map indicating if the active compost area is outside of the ten (10) year floodplain was not

provided. In the 2019 submittal (VFC # 82698747, pages 1 and 12) a floodplain map was
provided.  Please confirm if this information is still accurate, and if you would like these pages
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added to the current renewal application.
 

3. Procedures to control storm water runoff and leachate were not clear. In the 2019 submittal
(VFC 82698747, page 2) a written statement is provided describing these controls. Please
confirm if this information is still accurate, and if you would like these pages added to the
current renewal application

 
4. Procedures to control dust, odor, noise were not clear. In the 2019 submittal (VFC #

82698747, page 2) a written statement is provided describing these controls. Please confirm if
this information is still accurate, and if you would like these pages added to the current
renewal application

 
5. A map indicating the setbacks listed in Section F.8 of the application was not provided. In the

2019 submittal (VFC # 82698747, pages 3 and 14-15) a map was provided.  Please confirm if
this information is still accurate, and if you would like these pages added to the current
renewal application.

 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. The requested information must be
submitted to this office within 14 days of the date of receipt of this email, or please reach out to me if
additional time is needed.
 
Thanks!
 
Morrighan O’Connell
Environmental Manager II
Office of Land Quality - Solid Waste Permits
moconnel@idem.in.gov
(317) 232-3362
 
From: Sandy Hedges <shedges@gibsoncounty-in.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, June 11, 2024 12:23 PM
To: O'Connell, Morrighan <MOconnel@idem.IN.gov>
Cc: Lee Binhack <GCSW@gibsoncounty-in.gov>
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
Attached please find requested site maps and additional information to support our renewal
application. The original renewal application was filed on October 4, 2023, and was sent to the email
indicated in our letter from IDEM (copy of letter attached). We recently learned that the letter
contained an erroneous email address. I have re-sent the application to Ms. Fracetti, but am also

mailto:moconnel@idem.in.gov
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including a copy with this correspondence. I have also attached a copy of our Re-Trac submission for
2023.
 

1. Map Attached
2. Map Attached
3. Map Attached
4. Map Attached
5. Site Operator reports and controls dust, odor and noise.
6. Rows above the water line – Commissioners are in charge of all ditches and water run-off for

Gibson County-all in compliance
7. All Waste is transferred to a landfill facility in the neighboring county – Blackfoot Landfill in Pike

County Indiana
8. The physical location of the compost yard is: 3702 S 175 E in Princeton Indiana, as indicated

on the Beacon map attached. 771 Old Highway 41 North is our business office and all
correspondence should be sent to the business office.

9. We believe the amount reported on this application to be accurate. It is possible that the
information reported in previous years may have been erroneous, or could have been based on
a different timespan since our brush pile is processed as needed, not always annually.

We have submitted all the information known to be available to us at this time.  Our attorney is out
until next week. If we need additional documentation, we will need to bring this before our Board of
Directors and Attorney, and may need an extension. Please let me know if the documents submitted
satisfy the requirements, or if we need to submit additional information. Thank you for your time and
attention to this matter.
 
 
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
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1. A United States Geological Survey (USGS) 7-1/2 minute topographic map or equivalent that
shows the compost site location.

 
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
 

3. Information demonstrating the compost will be located at least five (5) feet from the water
table.

a. If the water table is less than five (5) feet from the active compost site, you must provide
a description of controls that will be used to prevent surface water contamination.

 
4. A map indicating the active compost area is outside of the ten (10) year floodplain.

a. If the active compost area is inside of the ten (10) year floodplain, provide a description
of the controls used to prevent ground or surface water contamination in the event of a
ten (10) year flood.

 
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

 
9. Section E.2 of the application states an estimated 30,000 tons will be processed annually.

This amount is significantly higher than amounts reported in 2022 and 2023, as shows in the
table below. Please confirm the estimated volume to be processed annually.

 
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
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